
 
 

1 
 

Executive Committee  
Meeting Minutes  

Wednesday, September 25, 2013, 5:30 p.m. 
DOE Information Center 

  
 

Committee Members Present Others Present 

Lisa Hagy, Secretary 
Bob Hatcher 
Dave Hemelright, Chair 
Bruce Hicks, Vice Chair 
Greg Paulus  
Corkie Staley 
 
Absent 
Scott McKinney 
 

Dave Adler, DOE 
Jan Lyons, ORSSAB 
Pete Osborne, ORSSAB support office  
 

Board Officer/DOE Comments 
  
Mr. Adler mentioned the unlikely prospect that there may not be an October board meeting should the 
government shutdown become reality.  
 
Monthly Board Meetings 
 
September 11 Review - The committee discussed the presentation on long-term stewardship but had no 
further comments regarding potential recommendations or actions.  
 
The committee discussed the open action item from the meeting: DOE will provide a link to budget volumes 
that provide descriptions of cleanup sites, their challenges, and funding profiles. Mr. Adler said the best way 
to respond to the action is to get Terry Tyborowski’s presentation from the upcoming chairs meeting. 
(Ms. Tyborowski is the DOE Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary for the Office of Program Planning and 
Budget.) 
 
Mr. Hicks wondered what perceptions the public and EPA had regarding site budgets. Mr. Paulus said he 
researched site budgets last year and found information on DOE’s website. Mr. Hemelright remarked that 
each SSAB focuses solely on its own site and doesn’t delve into other sites’ budgets. He said it would be a 
good thing to bring up at the chairs meeting, though. Mr. Adler cautioned against it, saying that talking to 
Headquarters about site budgets will not be productive. 
 
October 9 - The committee reviewed the meeting agenda (Attachment 1). Mr. Hemelright asked that 
Ms. Hagy’s name replace his for approval of the monthly meeting minutes. He asked that Mr. Hicks take over 
the task of introducing meeting presenters. 
 
Mr. Hemelright asked if there were any issues for the presenter to discuss. There were none. 
 
The committee reviewed the FY 2014 ORSSAB work plan (Attachment 2). Ms. Lyons noted that the Public 
Outreach Committee work plan is still draft.  
 
November 13 - The presentation topic will be an update on the East Tennessee Technology Park. 
 



 
 

2 
 

Committee Reports 
 
Finance & Process - The current costs table was distributed as Attachment 3. Mr. Paulus said the board is 
underspent again this year. The Finance and Process Committee is looking at revamping how the board does 
its financial planning and would like the Executive Committee to consider whether the current carryover 
should be given back to DOE or used in some way, such as through a large expenditure on outreach or some 
committee-related project. Mr. Hatcher said a sizeable sum could be used to send members on the western 
waste site tour. Mr. Adler noted that keeping travel within a reasonable range is desirable because travel is 
one budget category that is closely scrutinized by Headquarters. Mr. Osborne said that discussions have taken 
place about putting together another waste site tour, but the decision was to wait until after the new members 
were appointed this past July. 
 
EM/Stewardship – Mr. Hatcher reported that the EM/Stewardship Committee met on September 17 and 
worked on several issues: 

 The committee completed development of its FY 2014 work plan.  
 He and Ms. Staley were elected FY 2014 committee co-chairs. 
 A decision was made to develop the committee’s FY 2016 budget request via email.  
 Selection of a permanent meeting day was not settled. Staff is polling committee members again to 

help the committee make a decision.  
 
Public Outreach – Ms. Lyons said the committee has not met in two months, but it will meeting on Oct. 1. She 
noted that last year the committee was strongly encouraged to reduce costs, so if the Executive Committee 
wants to increase spending, the cuts previously made in printing outreach materials could be restored, 
allowing the committee to place more materials at public libraries in Anderson and surrounding counties.  
 
Other Business 
 
Chairs Meeting Topics - The committee reviewed a table of suggestions from the standing committees for 
topics to discuss at the fall chairs meeting (Attachment 4).  
 
Mr. Hicks recommended discussing the groundwater activity as the board’s major accomplishment. 
Mr. Hemelright agreed.  
 
Mr. Hatcher wondered why the list of top EM issues does not include the offsite groundwater contamination 
migration issue since it is an obvious choice for the list. Mr. Hicks asked where to get information on 
groundwater. Mr. Adler said the groundwater document Dr. Goode will be discussing at the October board 
meeting would be the best source. Staff was asked to get the document to Mr. Hicks. Mr. Hatcher asked for a 
copy too. Mr. Adler mentioned that the document will be marked as Official Use Only and should not be 
shared with the public. The Executive Summary will be small enough to distribute by email; the document 
would probably have to be distributed on CD.  
 
Mr. Hatcher wondered if it’s possible for groundwater contamination to migrate beneath the Clinch River 
without going under the Clinch River Breeder Reactor site as well. Mr. Adler said that wells located across 
the river where contaminants have been found are not near the reactor site, and the contaminants detected in 
the wells have not been shown to be directly relatable to the Oak Ridge Reservation.  
 
Returning to the list of top EM issues, Mr. Hemelright noted that the need to speed up cleanup of Oak Ridge 
National Laboratory is tied to budget. Likewise, addressing nuclear waste disposal problems with Nevada is 
associated with disposition of U-233. He suggested focusing on the U-233 issue at the chairs meeting but also 
touching on the groundwater migration issue and the work the board has done on it.  
 



 
 

3 
 

Several suggestions were included in the table for questions to ask Senior Advisor for EM David Huizenga. 
Mr. Hemelright said he likes the one about why Oak Ridge is ranked so low in priority for cleanup. He also 
likes the one about restraints on recycling. Ms. Lyons agreed with the second topic, noting that recycling of 
mildly contaminated materials is done in Europe, but in the U.S. it’s not allowed.  
  
Action Items 

Open 

1. Staff supply the groundwater strategy document to Mr. Hicks and Mr. Hatcher.  

2. Mr. Hemelright will discuss the metals recycling recommendation with the chairs of the Paducah and 
Portsmouth SSABs during the fall chairs meeting. Carryover from the 8/28/13 meeting 

Closed 

 None 
 
Next meeting 
 
Wednesday, October 23, 5:30 p.m., at the DOE Information Center 
 
Attachments (4). Available upon request from the ORSSAB support office. 

plo 


